	
	Questions
	Answers

	1.
	It says it is a 15 year lease, but will the lease be subject to annual budget reviews? 
	The Agency is requesting a fifteen (15) year lease term; however, Agency will maintain an option to terminate in the event that sufficient funds are not appropriated for the applicable fiscal year.

	2.
	How do I obtain a Federal Work Authorization Use Identification Number? I have leased to the State in the past, so the property may already have one. 
	Please refer to the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services website (http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify) for more information on the e-Verify process in order to obtain a Federal Work Authorization Use Identification Number. This identifier is contractor-specific, not property-specific.

	3.
	In preparing my proposal, should I write a item-by-item response to Shell building standards and Space Program requirements, or will this be dealt with at a later time?  
	Please respond to the building standards and space requirements in the most thorough manner possible in order to address each of the buildout components for the Agency’s consideration.

	4.
	Interior allowance / Tenant Improvement dollars, together with possible free-rent will best be determined by studying my floor plans and the specific spaces to determine how you can fit into my office suite, what will be needed to meet your needs; and then negotiating a final deal.  How do we handle this process?
	Please propose your most aggressive economic package for the Agency’s consideration based on market conditions as well as requirements outlined in the Agency’s program in Exhibit H. 

	5.
	Does the property have to be located in Fulton County?
	[bookmark: _GoBack]The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	6.
	In order for me to provide a lease proposal I will need to know how long of a term your client is looking to sign and when they’re looking to take occupancy.  Please let me know.  
	Per the RFP, the Agency is requesting a fifteen (15) year lease term with a desired commencement date of July 1, 2016.

	7.
	We are located in Sandy Springs at Roswell Road and I285.
Are we out of the bounds for this bid?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	8.
	We have a property in Tucker (DeKalb County).  Let me know if this works for their location, or are they only focused on Fulton County.
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	9.
	Are they looking anywhere in Fulton County or is there a specific area?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	10.
	Would Floyd County be too far away to be considered?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	11.
	Is this a pure administrative office?  
	Please refer to Exhibit H of the RFP for a detailed breakdown of the different components programmed for this requirement.

	12.
	Where are they currently located?
	The Office of Vital Records is currently located at 2600 Skyland Drive NE, Atlanta, GA 30319.

	13.
	What is the desired location or area? 
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	14.
	Please define geographic area and breakdown of office and warehouse
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Please refer to Exhibit H of the RFP for a detailed breakdown of the different components programmed for this requirement.

	15.
	Is the requirement for Fulton County only – within Atlanta City limits?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	16.
	Could the requirement be satisfied in a property that is non-contiguous space (i.e. various non-contiguous floors or various adjacent buildings)?
	The Agency is willing to consider all spaces.

	17.
	What are your client's locational preferences, i.e. acceptable boundary lines? Just Atlanta in general?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	18.
	Which of the following buildings that we lease may make sense for your client, locationally? 
· 34 Peachtree (30-story/290ksf), downtown Atlanta
· Technology Park single story
· Lower North Fulton, Roswell, GA single-story
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	19.
	Will two contiguous floors work for them, or do they need/prefer to be on only one floor?
	The Agency is willing to consider all spaces.

	20.
	This property has parking adjacent to the building, but no in-building/owner operated parking; as you know, parking ratios downtown are 1-2 spaces/thousand SF leased, so will this work?
	The Agency is willing to consider all spaces; however, an onsite parking ratio of 3.0 spaces/1,000 RSF would be considered acceptable.

	21.
	Are you requesting information for leasing in Atlanta or are you wanting to relocate to another city?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	22.
	We would like to know the ideal class of building, multi-story/single story, the targeted rental rate, and a more specific location for their focus. 
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. The Agency is willing to consider all spaces. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration. The expected rental rate will be a market rental rate based on overall market conditions and property type. Please propose your most aggressive economic package for the Agency’s consideration based on market conditions as well as requirements outlined in the Agency’s program in Exhibit H.

	23.
	What is the target location and approximate rental rate range for the requirement?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration. The expected rental rate will be a market rental rate based on overall market conditions and property type. Please propose your most aggressive economic package for the Agency’s consideration based on market conditions as well as requirements outlined in the Agency’s program in Exhibit H.

	24.
	We market space at 3300 Highlands Pkwy, off of South Cobb Drive and 285.  Could this location be a good fit?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	25.
	Does this Tenant have to be in city of Atlanta or Fulton County? 
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	26.
	The RFP states a 15 year lease – are there any early cancelations? Is it renewable in one year increments?
	The Agency is requesting a fifteen (15) year lease term; however, Agency will maintain an option to terminate in the event that sufficient funds are not appropriated for the applicable fiscal year.

	27.
	Does the property has to be City of Atlanta or if East Point would be eligible?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	28.
	Are Cobb County projects being considered for this requirement? If so are the areas of Cobb limited to those with an Atlanta address?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	29.
	Is the 15 year lease term a firm term or will the State require the right to terminate the lease based upon failure by the legislature to fund the operations within the Premises?
	The Agency is requesting a fifteen (15) year lease term; however, Agency will maintain an option to terminate in the event that sufficient funds are not appropriated for the applicable fiscal year.

	30.
	Can common area restrooms suffice for the use if Tenant is a full floor user?
	Common area restrooms would suffice for Tenant’s use.

	31.
	Can the building being proposed have encapsulated residual asbestos?
	If any preexisting conditions, such as encapsulated residual asbestos, are present in the space, the Landlord may still propose on the potential space and include their plans for addressing those preexisting conditions.

	32.
	Can file storage be located on a separate floor within the building? If not does the file system require excess structural support?
	The file storage area can be located on a separate floor, as long as the security and reinforcement measures are implemented for the space designated to contain this function.

	33.
	We have two floors (floors 4 and 5) available. Will the tenant be willing to divide their vital records space across two floors and can the trauma space be on the same floor as some of the vital records space?
	The Agency is willing to consider all spaces. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	34.
	Is tenant willing to go into a multi-tenant mid-rise office building?
	The Agency is willing to consider a multi-tenant, mid-rise office building, as long as it maintained exclusive dock access from the first level for the EMS Trauma unit.

	35.
	Is the location being close to an interstate important?
	The Agency is willing to consider all locations within the Atlanta Metropolitan Area. Respondents are encouraged to propose all spaces that fit within the aforementioned programmed square footage range; please be advised that any prospective spaces that are not proposed in response to the RFP cannot and will not be submitted for Agency’s consideration.

	36.
	Is 3.4 spaces per thousand sufficient for parking?
	A parking ratio of 3.0 spaces/1,000 RSF would be considered acceptable.

	37.
	Are there any special parking needs?
	In addition to the aforementioned acceptable parking ratio, Agency will also require at least one (1) dock high door for its EMS Trauma unit which will be utilized by average-sized ambulances.

	38.
	Does the trauma component need to be on the ground floor?
	It is highly preferred for the EMS Trauma unit to be on a ground floor due to the necessity to be within immediate proximity of the dock door(s) for the ambulance access.

	39.
	What does "production-oriented space” mean on page 1 paragraph 5?
	A production-oriented space is a space that provides for an open, collaborative layout for the Agency’s operations.



